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To be an excellent organization in offering a wide range of
compensations to patients with pneumoconiosis and/or
mesothelioma, providing quality rehabilitation care to the patients
for enhancing their physical condition, and, developing and
implementing preventive measures for striving fo minimize the
occurrence of these diseases among the workforce in the
construction and quarry industries.
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To provide a platform for the compensation, rehabilitation and prevention of
pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma for the betterment of the patients, the
workforce in the industries as well as the society as a whole, we endeavor to fulfill
the statutory functions in a professional and caring manner through:

o utilizing effectively the resources collected from the construction and quarry industries in
accordance with the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance to fulfill
our statutory functions;

* launching rehabilitation programmes to enhance the physical condition of the patients;

* implementing educational and publicity programmes to raise the awareness of employers,
workers, professionals and trainees in the industries as well as the public at large on the
prevention of the above diseases, and facilitate them in strengthening prevention works;

¢ building an occupational health culture among practitioners in the industries;

* providing medical examination programme for construction workers;

* supporting researches relating to the prevention, treatment and rehabilitation of the above
diseases; and

* maintaining a team of quality, efficient and people-oriented staff.

* practising the principles of honesty, integrity, objectivity, impartiality, accountability,
dedication, professionalism and diligence.
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This is a report of the work of this Committee in the year 2017, which
was another challenging year for the Board.

In comparison with the value of last year, tofal levy income increased
by 6.75% to $370.35 million. The levies from the public sector
increased by 4.48% to $193.47 million, and that from the private
sector increased by 9.43% to $176.74 million. On the other hand,
levies from the quarry industry dropped from $0.25 million to $0.14
million.

The inferest income of cerfificate of deposits, bonds and fixed deposits
increased by 14.12% or $4.25 million to $34.31 million. The
dividend income increased from $12.63 million to $15.45 million.
Other income was $1.55 million. As a whole, total income was
$421.66 million, showing an increase of $30.15 million or 7.7%
from 2016.

On the total expenditure, it increased by 13.42% to $272.04 million.
Total compensation of $204.41 million showed an increase of $12.2

million or 6.35% from 2016.

Furthermore, o total of $40.78 million was spent for research,
prevention and rehabilitation, which was $16.95 million or 71.13%
more than 2016. This was mainly due to part of the payment of $7.86
million to three hospitals and two non government organizations for
rehabilitation programme in 2015 and 2016. In addition, payment
for the new Comprehensive Community Rehabilitation Programme in
2017 was $4.11 million.
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To sum up, $252.63 million or 92.86% of the total expenditure were
paid as compensation, medical examination, research, prevention
and rehabilitation for the benefit of patients and workers.

The surplus of income over expenditure for the year was $149.62
million, which was $2.04 million or 1.35% less than the previous

vear. The balance of accumulated fund was at the record high level
of $2,373.54 million.

Regarding the investment of reserves, about 85% of the surplus funds
were placed on certificate of deposits, bonds and fixed deposit af
short to longterm fixed rates in order fo ensure a relatively stable
interest income. The certificate of deposits and bonds will be held to
maturity, while the remaining 15% of the surplus funds were invested
in listed shares and the Tracker Fund for dividend income and long-
ferm invesiment purposes. In 2017, the global financial markets
remained very volatile, and thereby increased the risk of investment.
The Committee had been closely monitoring the investment portfolios.

Furthermore, the manpower of the secrefariat had been strengthened
to further support the work on rehabilitation. In 2017, a team of Case
Managers were recruited to conduct home visits and invite patients fo
join the Comprehensive  Community Rehabilitation Programme.
Besides, the Board decided to develop a Case Management System
to collect the information of patients on their rehabilitation needs for
providing suitable rehabilitation services to them.

In June 2017, the Board submitted its annual report in 2016 for
tabling in the legislative Council. The Estimates of Income and
Expenditure together with the Yearly Programme for 2018 were also
submitted in December 2017 for approval by the Government in
accordance with the provision of the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance (“the Ordinance”).

As the authorized paying agent of the Pneumoconiosis Ex Gratia Fund
("the Fund”), the Board presented the Fund's interim and final reports
together with the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2017 which were audited by the Director of Audit and approved by
the Government.

Before ending this report, heartfelt thanks were expressed to the
confributions and supports given by members to the affairs of this
Committee.
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Levy
The levy rate was reduced from 0.25% 1o 0.15% from 20 August

2012 and its impact o our levy income was still reflected in 2017
with 25.05% (versus 37.43% in 2016) of levy income actually came
from construction contracts levied at 0.25%.

The overall levy income in 2017 was increased by 6.75% to $370.35
million. The private sector had an increase of 9.43% to $176.74
million (2016: $161.52 million). The public secfor also had an
increase of 4.48% to $193.47 million versus $185.17 million in the
previous year.

We recorded $51.52 million of levy income from MTR projects,
indicated a 6.38% drop from the previous year of $55.03 million.
With only one quarry site left in Hong Kong, the levy income from
quarry industry dropped from $0.25 million to $0.14 million.

The construction project at Kai Tak Development and the Airport
Development scheme contributed the levy income of $11.91 million,
an increase of $5.52 million from $6.39 million in 2016
represenfing an increase of 86.38%. levy income from West
Kowloon Cultural District was increased from $1.23 million to $2.50

million, representing an increase of 103.25%.

Compensation

The number of new cases recorded in 2017 was 72, including 54
silicosis, 16 Mesothelioma and 2 Asbestosis cases. The total paid out
of compensation was $204.41 million, representing an increase of
6.35% as compared with $192.21 million in 2016. The key
confributing factor for the increase was the compensation for
incapacity, pain, suffering and loss of amenities with an increase of
$12.36 million (7.58%) from $163.00 million to $175.36 million.

1 March 2017

to revise the levels of five compensation items under the Ordinance.

A resolution was passed at the Legislative Council on
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Of the amendments, the amount of Monthly Compensation for Pain,
Suffering and Loss of Amenities increased from $4,650 to $5,110.
The amount of Compensation for Bereavement and the minimum
compensation for death increased from $110,390 to $121,230. KEefEma+— 8T =ghtnEmNeE+=
The maximum amount of Funeral Expenses increased from $76,220 —FZB=4n [BEBREBILRABLE
to $83,700; and the Monthly Compensation for Care and Attention ANTFZ_BZtTEMENE=FtBET - ZE
was increased from $4,930 1o $5,210. RIEEERBEIFEANGHEEIAIGENTAE=S
t+rEgEmERF=—_8—+txe
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During the Annual Inferview with our patients, we conducled a WM RFEEEZREGHEBAFEENRA
patient’s satisfaction survey on our Compensation Services in general. HHESNRERERETT —HBEH
The overall average score was maintained at o high level of 91.3%. B WAFHETHBE 3% #FESK

To end this report, sincere thanks were given to all the Committee K& RUOBHEZESEMAEKEEBRKEH
members for their confributions in the areas of levy and EEHBELNER -
Compensation.
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2017 was a fruitful yet challenging year for the Committee. A total of
12 applications have been received, which should be the highest
number since our Research Fund launched in 1996. We are happy
fo see that more and more researchers show interest in conducting
studies relating to Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma, and believe
that one day these would bring harvest for benefitting our patients, the
construction industry and the society as a whole.

In addition fo the regular quarterly meetings, the Committee held one
extra meeting this year fo clear the heavy workload. Members spent
enormous amount of time studying each proposal in details, listening
fo the researchers for their presentations, exchanging views with them
and coming up with their professional decisions. As members are all
volunteers and most of them have other engagements, their great
contribution fo the efficient operation of the Committee should be well
recognised.

Eventually, the Committee approved one extended project and two
new projects during the year. With stimulating results obtained in the
first year, Prof Chen Zhi Wei from the University of Hong Kong (HKU)
was granted a second-year funding for continuing his project “Induction
of Mesothelioma-Specific CD8+ T Cell Response for Immunotherapy
and Prevention”. Although the project was at an initial stage, we are
hopeful to anficipate substantial progress from time to time bringing us
closer and closer fo success.

As prognosis and treatment of pleural malignant mesothelioma was
not satisfactory, a lot of researchers did show interest in these areas.
We funded a few studies in recent years and a new one was
approved this year enfiled “Co-inhibition of autophagy and
proteasome for freatment of malignant pleural mesothelioma”
conducted by Dr William Wu from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong (CUHK). The ubiquitinprofeasome system is a major catabolic
pathway for protein degradation. Emerging evidence suggested that
targeting this pathway might be a promising approach for the
freatment of cancer. As malignant pleural mesothelioma has exhibited
in-vitro and invivo sensitivity o proteasome inhibition, this opened up
opportunities for the use of proteasome inhibitors for the treatment of
the disease. To be more specific, the project aimed fo delineate the
effect of bortezomib (an FDA-approved proteasome inhibitor) on
autophagy and its underlying mechanism in malignant pleural
mesothelioma cells and also fo defermine the effect of co-inhibition of
proteasome and autophagy on the growth of malignant pleural
mesothelioma cells in vitro and in vivo.

m Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board ~ Annual Report 2017

0177FREBEFTMIBN—F 2FHK
B2 RIBEBRF BRTREELH 199
FRIARBBZZHBFN —F-ZERR
FZMRABEMERIE R & E B
RELET HEELMRGHNEREY
BRBBA BETENEEBHET KA
B o

MrEZE8esFEMETFEeR BEF
MA-—REZFUNEBENENTF - EFLS
B ZERLAEHHIFHNTOTEE -
RIEMRENBER BUMAXBER &R
FHEXRE - ZBHERHEL KZFH
HEMEENTH MANNTHSHEZES
SHENEF GEEERERR -

EFRZEEREMHBTE —HIEENE M
MIBFFE - BEABREBHRIENF
BRINBEEENCDS TANR R EIAED 2&E
AEMEH KB EMNIEEEEFREDN
DEMBEENER ALZESRBEAL
BEE-—FUETEZOREER - AW
REBRZESHER EZEHNEFFERER
HRTEABRBRKIHER -

M A R B 2 T MOR A N IR AR - I F AR
ZMAEANEREGECSLEMNBHFR I/ -
BEeREZBFEPTHETAER MESE
FHBBBEREPHELTXAZHREE
TEREZIBNGEREESBELOAREMN
MKEIERE - 2% — ZEABRBREAREES
ERBOTEORKRIRC - BHRNEFER
B HEZEERRBEAIERBIERERK
HE-ARBHENBERKBERIINERNY
EOMEMHEHSRREGERE  E-ERQ
TR B BRI AK R T AIBE - K
FoAMREEMPAMBTER(—BLEHR
mEYERBIENEORRINGIE) HEE
MRERBARAROTE R L BEERS
ARAEREIG EQBENE %Y B
RRENBAREBINNEBRNERNTE -



Besides Mesothelioma, Pneumoconiosis is our other key concern. For
our Pneumoconiosis patients, the fibrosis of the lung makes the disease
progressive and irreversible, and hence they have fo suffer from the
disease throughout their life. In a recent study conducted by Prof
Kenneth lee of CUHK, he had found a tree bark extract that could
significantly inhibit liver fibrosis. This gave the Committee the
confidence to grant him our Research Fund for conducting a project
entitled “Efficacy of bioactive Tree Bark extracts fo reverse idiopathic
pulmonary fibrosis”, aiming to defermine if the extract could also be
used fo inhibit excess collagen production in idiopathic pulmonary
fibrosis.

In addition fo new projects, a few on-going projects were complefed
during the year. The one conducted by Dr James Ho of HKU had
found out that “BCT-100 as a single agent has revealed significant in
vitro and in vivo anticancer effects in malignant pleural mesothelioma,
which were mediated by deplefion of intratumoral arginine resulting in
apoptosis and cell cycle arrest. This would lay good foundation for
further studies. In another project entitled "Comprehensive Risk
Assessment of People with Silicosis: A Population Based Study”
conducted by Dr Cheng Ho Yu of CUHK, we gained more
information on the health status of our patients, which could eventually
help us provide or suggest befter management to them.

Research is a longterm investment and we cannot expect dramatic
progress in one day. However, with the accumulation of knowledge
in various aspects of the diseases, we are confident that in the
foreseeable future we could vyield successful refurn in prevention,
diagnosis, assessment, treatment and rehabilitation management of
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma in Hong Kong.
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We infroduced a brand new “Comprehensive Community
Rehabilitation Programme” in 2016, and the programme ran in full
tier in 2017. Until the end of the year, our Case Managers have
contacted around 900 patients, which were about 0% in our cohort,
and successfully inviled 427 patients fo receive a preliminary
assessment conducted by them. Eventually, 229 patients were
recruited and completed o comprehensive rehabilitation  needs
assessment in the Advenfist Hospital, Tsuen Wan. After patients
complefed the assessment, they would get an “exercise prescription”
and being referred to a commissioned fraining centre to have regular
exercising under the supervision of the centre Physiotherapist, and then
receive reassessment in every 3-month to evaluate the effectiveness of
the training, and bring modification to the prescripfion, if necessary.
As we need fo ensure the quality of services, we selected the training
centres with prudence, and until the end of the year, we had seven
cenfres serving under this programme. Our Case Managers in most
cases would accompany patients o atfend the first session of training,
and then patients would be taken care by the Physiotherapists
stationed in the centre while our Case Managers would have frequent
contact with them for monitoring the progress of the patients.

Although the benefit of maintaining regular exercises are widely
recognised in pulmonary rehabilitation, to have patients maintaining
an exercise habif is never to be an easy fask. To our satisfaction, we
were able fo keep about 100 patients having regular exercises of 1-8
times per month, and our “record holder” has been attending the
centre for almost 12 times per month for half a year already. As more
and more patients were doing exercises in these centres, they made
new friends in the centres. Not only their physical conditions were
improved, their social circle had also been enlarged bringing them a
better psychological health. With more patients complefing the “exercise
cycle” and receiving reassessments in Adventist Hospital, we could
gather more information on the efficiency and benefit of the
programme for encouraging more patients to join it lafer.

Physical health is important to everyone, so is psychological health.
This is particularly important fo our group of Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma patients who are burdened with an incurable disease.
To provide possible assistance to the group of patients with
psychological problems, we have commissioned the Pneumoconiosis
Mutual Aid Association [PMAA] fo run a support programme for taking
care of this group of patients. During the year, about 500 home visits
have been offered to different patients who were identified to have
psychological problems like depression, social isolation and others for
providing counseling and other services including referral to
appropriate  medical institufions fo them. As the social workers
responsible for the home visits are all with good experience in dealing
with this group of patients, we hope they could help our patients as
far as possible.
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In order to let us have the most updated information, we commissioned
the Association for the Rights of Industrial Accident Victims to carry out
an individual assessment for 300 selected patients for identifying the
possible social barrier problems, and af the same fime, we also
conducted a Functional Impairment Checklist Survey for most of our
patients during the last quarter of the year. Results of these surveys
would be ready by beginning of 2018, and we believe these could
help us design programmes more closely match with needs of our
patients.

In addition fo the surveys, we opened more new channels in 2017
for maintaining closer and regular communication with our pafients.
We aranged meetings with relevant patients’ organisation  for
listening to their views and we also published our first newsletter in
April to serve as a link between the Board and the patients. VWith
closer communication between the Board and the patients, we hope
we could understand their needs better so as fo safisfy those needs as
far as possible.

We will be dlert of adjusting our services regularly so as to catch up
with the changing needs of our clients. The Rehabilitation Commitiee
and the Board are committed to making prolong investment for
providing the best holistic care to our group of patients.
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N/

Exercise Training  Comprehensive Community Rehabilitation Programme

HESRSEREE EDHER
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Community Rehabilitation Tai Chi Class
HEEE AR

Community Health Talk
R R AR

Community Health Talk — Music Therapy
HEREREE JHRAEE
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The construction industry in Hong Kong recorded a steady growth in
2017 due to major public infrastructure projects being rolled out in
phases and the increasing demand for residential projects as well as
the renovation projects for old buildings. However, under whatever
situations, occupational health and safety of construction workers
should be a top priority in which the Board is always committed fo
instill knowledge on prevention of pneumoconiosis to them and the
construction industry. In 2017, the new cases for pneumoconiosis and
mesothelioma in Hong Kong are 72. The Board have often been
aware of it and will continue fo perform publicity, and promotion on
prevention and infroduce preventive measures to the industry fo
minimize the number of people suffered from these diseases.

To summarize our efforts in 2017, we will put them in categories of
"education”, "publicity” and "health management” as follows.

For education in 2017, we made use of different channels for
promotion and prevention of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma
including educational and promotional activities jointly organized with
the Labour Department, the Occupational Safety & Health Council,
the Construction Indusiry Council and other related organizations.

In 2017, the Board provided trainings related fo the pneumoconiosis
prevention o around 5,000 personnel in the construction field. In
order to provide training that truly fulfill needs of stoff of different
levels, trainings that we arranged are highly flexible, including fullime
courses (10 sessions in total) that were jointly organized with the
Occupational Safety & Health Council and designated for stoff in
construction industry and quarry industry; and 119 seminars were
organized in total at different construction sites in Hong Kong so that
construction workers could receive prevention information at the sites
without the need of travelling fo the training venues.
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As for the publicity, the Board continued fo carry out the “Publicity
Toolbox Plan”, and delivered "Publicity Toolboxes” to 379 main
contractors whom have sfarted new contracts in 2017. The foolbox
included posters, brochures and respirators, facilitating contractors o
promote the correct way of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma
prevention fo construction workers at the site more effectively. Through
the “Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Site Beautification Campaign”, we
also provided site hoarding banners with prevention messages to
beautify the construction sites. WWe hope that such colorful hoarding
banners can remind construction workers to take preventive measures
all the times. The hoarding banners can be used by the construction
industry freely, and there were 45 consfruction sites participated
during the year.

Apart from organizing promotion programmes as aforementioned, the
Board also subsidized organizations of the construction industry to
organize prevention campaigns of different scales and types, and
altogether subsidized 17 activities organized by 11 organizations
during 2017, which included some largescale activities such as the
"Prevention of Asbestosis Community Campaign”, the “Prevention of
Pneumoconiosis at Construction Sites Campaign”, and the “Prevention
of Pneumoconiosis among Ethnic Minorities” Campaign.

In oddition fo organizing various types of activities, the Board also
used different media and publicity channels, including TVB Jade
Channel, soccer competitions, horse racing and financial TV program
at Cable TV and Now TV, Commercial Radio 1, Metro Radio, MTR
stations and trains, bus sfops, Facebook and YouTube efc., to
broadcast the pneumoconiosis prevention advertisements and related
information, so as to convey the messages of prevention fo citizens of
all levels.

EEEHETE ReZEQUERTIER
TAMAE R20V7FEXHIEEIAME]T
37OMEMEM TIER MM AFAREE : TAMNK
BREEEH T RF R &S L' B
R AR T A TR R TR b EE R
ME RN EN B IERE L - RFITERIE
iR E R TRt 8] MIRHEAR
BERARNEGEEMBERERER(T
e FEEZELEXIRNERBERER
BETREZAMEELNESL 2EXRATA
BMEA REABLASEI S E-

HeZEehIH LS EFEN TED
ERABBENRTRMREREAXWED HE
B R2017FEHER T 1 EBBERH
17HRES  EREERARNEBNIERL A
wLERmEEHLRERE] [BIMER
MERESFULTHHEREFE IRV BEEA
PilmEE RN B Rt B 8|55 -

RERSEANESIIN EeZEEUTAR
FEBTRAKENSEERE BEELESH
FEE BLHEERENowE AT R M T K
hE - EFRVEHE BE—B FHE
B BB RESR - BT EI - Facebook &
YouTube S B EMBIHIMERTERES K
HEEF EUFBEH 2AEEBSEEA
+ o

MERNERBEEEEEZE8E —T—tFFRH _



In order to achieve synergies, the Board continued fo jointly organize
the "Occupational Health Award” with the Occupational Safety &
Health Council, the labour Depariment, the Department of Health and
the Occupational Deafness Compensation Board. There were 29
construction sites from 26 companies participating in the “Prevention
of Pneumoconiosis Award” during the year. Special thanks were
given to the parficipating organizations for their contributions fo the
pneumoconiosis prevention. We believe that as long as we share and
work together, we will be able to promote a higher level of
occupational safety and health of the construction industry so as fo
provide a safer and healthier working environment for construction
workers.

As for health, since pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma are chronic
diseases, the initial symptoms are not obvious and difficult to
diagnose, therefore, the Board has carried out the "Medical
Surveillance  Programme  for Pneumoconiosis/Mesothelioma”  since
November 2011 and it has been the 6th year already. Through
regular  physical examinations, the programme not only helps
construction workers fo detect chest or other problems and fo receive
corresponding freatment as soon as possible and it is believed that
construction workers will pay more attention fo occupational health
subsequently. Up fill 31 December 2017, there were 26,961
workers (28,509 worker's visits) having participated in  the
programme. There were 40 confirmed cases eventually, out of which
one person was suffering from asbestosis, one from mesothelioma and
others were silicosis.

Furthermore, the Board has studied in 2017 and will launch a dust
reduction scheme to the construction indusiry in early 2018. By
subsidizing related small and medium sized companies in Hong Kong
to buy dust reduction tools, we believe it should be a more effective
way to reduce dust.

Finally, heartfelt thanks were expressed to the support of the partners
and industries for the smooth implementation of our preventive work.
The prevention work in the next year will be more challenging, but we
are confident that with the support of the Board members and the joint
effort of the industry stakeholders, we will achieve better results in
future.
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The Board through different media to convey the Prevention of Pneumoconiosis message to citizens of ll levels.
EeZEeEBTRERERENNELRNEFRES REREM
BUSAR A EEEEREAL -

Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Educational DVD for the South Asian Ethnic Minority Group
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Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Site Beautification Campaign 2017

By Bl BB 4R 7 & % T it 32 {L & 812017
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE PNEUMOCONIOSIS
COMPENSATION FUND BOARD

(established in Hong Kong under the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance)

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board
(the "Board”) sef out on pages 27 to 61, which comprise:

° the balance sheet as at 3 1st December 2017:

®  the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the sfatement of changes in funds for the year then ended;

e the sfatement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes fo the financial statements, which include a summary

of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Board as at 31st December 2017, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Cerfified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Board in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the

Code.

Other Information

The Board members are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is fo read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears fo be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required fo
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Board Members for the
Financial Statements

The Board members are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the
Board members determine is necessary fo enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due fo fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board members are
responsible for assessing the Board's ability to confinue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
members either infend to liquidate the Board or fo cease operations,
or have no redlistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always defect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatfements can arise from
fraud or eror and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepficism throughout
the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriafe to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a material
missfatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, infentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

i Obtain an understanding of interal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Board's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Board members.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board members’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
fo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Board's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude
that @ material uncerfainty exists, we are required to draw
affention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. QOur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up tfo the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Board to

cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board members regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in infernal control
that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21st June 2018
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As at 31 December 12 A 31H
(Al amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br BB FRBAIN - FIE @B ABE BB AL

)

Note 2017 2016
M5
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment and ME - R RRELREHE
property for rental IS 5 22,823,157 30,444,348
Held-to-maturity financial assets EEEFHzemEE 7 784,943,227 114,925,516
Availablefor-sale financial assets At EZemEAE 8 372,638,430 293,441,125
1,180,404,814 438,810,989
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable FE U BR 3K 9 12,740,908 20,866,555
Interest receivables FE W R B 13,647,203 11,033,384
Deposits and prepayments e MTENFRIE 71,913 84,913
Advance payment for compensation TExHES 446,688 424,438
Held-to-maturity financial assets BEZIHBH ESREE 7 100,000,000 234,993,508
Fixed deposits with original maturity over REBB =@ A%ZHH 2
three months EHITF 3R 10 1,265,414,399 1,652,830,328
Cash and cash equivalents HBENREEBEY 11 14,035,438 6,093,015
1,406,356,549 1,926,326,141
Assets classified as held for sale DERBELECEE 12 6,607,674 -
1,412,964,223 1,926,326,141
Total assets MEE 2,593,369,037  2,365,137,130
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES HEHeraE
Funds and reserves HEeRHE 13
Accumulated fund 2BES 2,373,535,661 2,218,516,917
Research fund fxEs 14,679,761 16,376,833
Prevention fund JElHE S 35,643,728 35,919,779
Rehabilitation fund ERES 14,155,780 15,961,689
Computer sysfems fund BEREGED = 603,941
Capital reserve ERfFHE 29,430,831 30,444,348
Investment reserve WEREE 122,616,957 44,454 919
Total funds ESHEEm 2,590,062,718  2,362,278,426
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As at 31 December 12 A 31H
(Al amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Br BB BN - FTE S BHAEE BEAL)

Note 2017 2016
s
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Provision for long service payments REIRG € BE 110,000 80,000
110,000 80,000
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables EETRIBERHEMEMNFKIE 14 3,196,319 2,778,704
Total liabilities waEE 3,306,319 2,858,704
Total funds and liabilities HeREaEBEHRE 2,593,369,037  2,365,137,130

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the i EEBEREEBEN 2 M —fHE -

accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 27 to 61 were approved by the 27 E61 B 2 B # i &R N 2018 F6 A 21 A
Board members on 2 1st June 2018 and were signed on its behalf. EESZECZERBUYNRKRESE -
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Year ended 31 December {2 12 A 318 1k

[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Br BB EHBAIN - FTE S BHAEE BEAL)

Note 2017 2016
(i3
Revenue A
Levy income B A 15 370,349,899 346,934,006
Other income Htug A
Inferest income on: RTHNEME2FBHA
— bank deposits —RITER 22,674,592 20,066,667
— held+omaturity financial assets —BERABEREE 11,636,513 9,998,236
Dividend income from listed securities RELTMBESFAEREBA 15,449,511 12,631,176
Ex-gratia fund administration charge received KRERESMKER 2
TRER 128,875 145,052
Penalty on late payments of levies IB SR AT R 2 B R 396,143 236,701
Rental income AE WA 1,024,560 1,024,560
Sundry income HIEWA 1 480,505
51,310,195 44 582,897
Expenditure X
Operating and administrative expenditures 2B RITHF X
— Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma —ERLERRERE
compensations mE 204,407,453 192,211,780
— Project expenses —EBHEX 41,326,804 24,082,676
— Employee benefit expense —BEFHEEANAX 16 14,937,995 12,740,704
— Adminisfrative expenses —1THEYX 17 1,951,867 2,221,994
— Medical examination fees —HEER 18 7,441,270 6,159,905
— Depreciation — e 5 1,013,517 1,013,517
— Capital expenditure —ERMAY 058,934 769,278
— Exchange losses —EREE = 652,607
272,037,840 239,852,461
Surplus for the year =FERH 149 622,254 151,664,442
Other comprehensive income for the year 2 FE 2 b2 H WK #F
liems that may be reclassified to profit or loss AEEF T EEm 2 IEH
Fair value gain/(loss) on availableforsale At EZeREE
financial assets AR BEKE(BE) 8 78,162,038 (9,920,797)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2 F & # 2/ 2 227,784,292 141,743,645

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying nofes.
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Br BB BN - FTE S FBHAEE BEAL)

Funds and reserves

Eekf#E

Balance at 1st January 2016 R2016FE1 A1 A& 2,220,534,781
Comprehensive income e G
Surplus for the year & FE AR 151,664,442
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 HEUE
Fair value loss on availablefor-sale AHEEzERMEEAABEEER

financial assets (9,920,797)
Total comprehensive income e TR 141,743,645

Balances at 31st December 2016
and 1st January 2017

R20165F12A31BR201751 A1 B &8

2,362,278,426

Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive income
Fair value gain on availableforsale
financial assets

e &
EFERR

Hith 2 H W %
AT EZEREEA A BENRS

149,622,254

/8,162,038

Total comprehensive income

A8 2 [ I 58

227,784,292

Balance at 31st December 2017

R2017F12831 H#& 8

2,590,062,718

The above statement of changes in funds should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying nofes.

FiES
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Year ended 31 December {2 12 A 318 1k
[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Br BB EHBAIN - FTE S BHAEE BEAL)

Note 2017 2016
M5
Cash flows from operating EETHRERE
activities
Cash generated from operations REELTHHELIRS 20|a) 109,414,964 101,391,243
Net cash inflow from operating activities & EEEE LIRS HA
R 109,414,964 101,391,243
Cash flows from investing RETBHESRE
activities
Purchases of held4o-maturity financial BARAZRIHZ
assets TBMEE 7 (770,000,000) —
Decrease/ (increase] in fixed deposits with R F #8318 = 18 5 12 B H3 ~
original maturity over three months BT (G ) 387,415,929 (299,448,423)
Redemption of held-to-maturity BOHERIBMZ
financial assets EREE 7 235,000,000 151,000,000
Interest received U BRI B 31,697,286 33,137,362
Dividends received W B % B 14,414,244 11,781,234
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities B % & /& B EE £ 38 € & H
iRt (101,472,547) (108,529,827)
Net increase/(decrease) incash BERBRESZEEBEY 2 FE
and cash equivalents B,/ CR2) 7,942,423 (2,138,584)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ME#IZH e MR EE
of the year Y 48 78 6,093,015 8,231,599
Cash and cash equivalents at REZHZBHER
end of the year REeESEYAR 17 14,035,438 6,093,015

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with 3L 3R & it & 7 & B2 BE B 2 B 5 — GF BT 78 -

the accompanying notes.

MERNERBEEEEEZE8E —T—tFFRH m



General information

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board (the “Board”) is
established with a role as a compensation body, and fo
engage in the areas of rehabilitation, prevention and research
in respect of pneumoconiosis. The address of its registered
office is 15/F, Nam Wo Hong Building, 148 Wing Lok Street,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

With the enactment of the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
[Amendment) Ordinance 1993 (the "Ordinance”) on 9th July
1993, all those pneumoconiofics who were compensated by
the Board between Tst January 1981 and 8th July 1993 can
make application fo the Board to receive further compensation
and other payments under the new compensation scheme. After
re-assessment is made by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board
and approval granted, the applicant will receive monthly
payments of compensation in respect of the difference between
the degree of incapacity determined by the Pneumoconiosis
Medical Board on the re-assessment and the degree of
permanent incapacity previously determined by the Board under
the Ordinance prior fo its amendment.

The Board's liability to compensation arises when an applicant
is assessed by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to be
suffering from pneumoconiosis and a cerificate is issued by the
Commissioner for Labour of the applicant's fulfilment of the
residency requirement.

On 18th April 2008, the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
Ordinance was amended fo include provisions fo provide
compensation fo persons suffering from mesothelioma.
Accordingly, the name of the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
Ordinance has been renamed as the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance. Applicants who are
assessed by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to the suffering
from mesothelioma are subject to the same eligibility criteria
and payment of compensation which are consistent with
applicants suffering from pneumoconiosis.

On 1st September 2008, the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance was further amended
to allow patients with pneumoconiosis or mesothelioma fo seek
freatment from registered Chinese medicine practitioners and
claim reimbursement of the medical expenses and cost of
medicines for the freafment of pneumoconiosis or mesothelioma,
subject to the maximum amount of claims as prescribed in the
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar,
unless otherwise stated.
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B RSN - R B BN EE BE L)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Board have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS"). The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of availableforsale financial asses,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
esfimates. It also requires management fo exercise ifs
judgement in the process of applying the Board's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in nofe 4.

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing HKFRS (collectively, the
“Amendments”) adopted by the Board and
effective for accounting year commencing
on 1st January 2017

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants has issued a number of Amendments
which are mandatory for the Board's accounting
year commencing on st January 2017. These
Amendments do not have any impact on the
Board's financial statements.

(b) Amendments that are not yet effective and
have not been adopted by the Board
Cerfain Amendments have been published that are
not mandatory for 31st December 2017 reporting
period and have not been early adopted by the
Board. The Board's assessment of the impact of
these Amendments is set out below.
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HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS @ addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and a new impairment model for
financial assets.

The Board has reviewed its financial assets and
liabilities and is expecting the following impact from
the adoption of the new standard on Tst January

2018:

e its equity insfruments that are currently
classified as availablefor-sale financial assefs
will safisfy the conditions for classification as
at fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FYOCI") and hence there will be no
change to the accounting for these assefs;
and

e s debt instruments that are currently classified
as held4o-maturity and measured at amortised
cost will meet the conditions for classification
at amortised cost under HKFRS Q.

Accordingly, the new guidance does not have
material impact on the classification and
measurement of the Board's financial assefs.
However, gains or losses realised on the sale of
financial assets at FVOCI will no longer be
fransferred to comprehensive income on sale, but
instead reclassified below the line from the FVOCI
reserve fo accumulated fund.

There will be no impact on the Board's accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and
the Board does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been fransferred from
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” ["HKAS 39"} and have not been
changed.

The new hedge accounting rules will not have any
impact on the Board's financial statements since the
Board has not applied hedge accounting.
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B RSN - R B BN EE BE L)

The new impairment model requires the recognition
of impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses rather than only incurred credit losses as is
the case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial
assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income, confract assets under HKFRS 15, lease
receivables, loan commitments and certain financial
guarantee confracts. Based on the assessments
underfaken to date, the Board does not expect any
significant impact from these changes.

The new sfandard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected fo change the
nature and exfent of the Board's disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in the year of the
adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS @ must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after Tst January 2018. The
Board will apply the new rules refrospectively from
Ist January 2018, with the practical expedients
permitted under the standard. Comparatives for
2017 will not be restated.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”’

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the existing
which

covers revenue arising from sales of goods and

revenue standards, HKAS 18 “Revenue’,

rendering of services, and HKAS 11 "Construction
Contracts” which specifies the accounting for
revenue from construction contracts.

The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of service
fransfers to a counferparty.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified refrospective approach for the adoption.

The Board performed a preliminary assessment of
HKFRS 15, which is subject to changes arising from
a more defailed ongoing analysis. The Board
expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not
have material impact on the financial statements in
the period of initial application.
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B &R 8AIN - FIE ©REINEE B EBE L)

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after Tst January 2018. The
Board intends to adopt the standard using the
modified refrospective approach which means that
the cumulative impact of the adoption will be
recognised in accumulated funds as of Tst January
2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new sfandard, an asset (the right fo use
the leased ifem) and o financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
shortterm and low-value leases.

The accounfing for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Board's operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Board does not have any operating lease
commitment as a lessee, and accordingly the
adoption of HKFRS 16 will not have material
impact on the financial statements in the period of
initial application.

HKFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after Tsf January 2019. At this
stage, the Board does not infend fo adopt the
standard before ifs effective date.

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Board in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future
fransactions.

2.2 Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the
Board are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Board
operates ("the functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar,
which is the Board's functional and presentation
currency.
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B RSN - R B BN EE BE L)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency fransactions are franslated info the
functional currency using the exchange rafes at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resuling from the setilement of such
fransactions and from the franslation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at yearend exchange rafes are generally
recognised in comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured af fair value
in a foreign currency are franslated using the
exchange rafes at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assefs and
liabiliies carried at fair value are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets such
as equities classified as availableforsale financial
assefs are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciafion. Hisforical cost includes expenditure that
is directly affributable to the acquisition of the ifems.

Subsequent costs are included in the assef's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate assef, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Board
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and mainfenance are charged fo comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Lleasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold
land classified as finance lease and depreciation on other
assefs are calculated using the straightline method fo
allocate their costs, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Leasehold land classified as finance lease

DEABEMEZHE LM

Shorter of remaining lease term or useful life of 50 years

HRTHERASOFAEAFHRZREE

Lleasehold improvements Shorter of the lease period or useful life of 10 years
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (nofe 2.5).

Gains and losses on disposals are defermined by
comparing proceeds with carrying omount. There are
included in comprehensive income.

2.4 Property for rental

Property for rental is held for longterm rental yields and is
not occupied by the Board. Property for rental comprises
land held under finance leases and buildings.

The Board has adopted the cost model in accordance
with HKFRS fo account for the property for rental. The
property for renfal is sfafed at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and is
depreciated at a rate sufficient to write off its carying
amount over shorfer of remaining lease ferm or its
estimated useful life of 50 years.

2.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
assef's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assefs are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assefs or
groups of assefs (cash-generating units). Non-inanciol
assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of the
reporting period.

2.6 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assefs are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a
sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell, except for assefs such as deferred tax assefs,
assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets
and investment property that are carried af fair value and
confractual rights under insurance contracts, which are
specifically exempt from this requirement.
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An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less costs
to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases
in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess
of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised.
A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of
the sale of the non-current asset is recognised at the date
of derecognition.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while
they are classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the other assefs in the balance
sheet.

2.7 Financial assets

2.7.1 Classification
The Board classifies its financial assefs in the
following categories: loans and receivables, held-
fo-maturity financial assets and  availableforsale
financial assets. The classification depends on the
purposes for which the financiol assefs were
acquired. Management defermines the classification
of its financial assefs at initial recognition and, in
the case of assets classified as held-to-maturity, re-
evaluates this designation at the end of each
reporting period.

Loans and receivables
loans and receivables are non-derivative

(a)

financial assets with fixed or deferminable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. If collection of the amounts is
expected in one year or less they are
clossified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current asses.

(b) Held-to-maturity financial assets
The Board classifies financial assets as held-

fo-maturity if:

° they are non-derivative financial asses,

e they have fixed or deferminable
payments and fixed maturities, and

° the Board intends to, and is able to,
hold them to maturity.
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Held-to-maturity financial assets are included
in non-current assets, except for those with
maturifies less than 12 months from the end of
the reporting period, which would be
classified as current assets.

(c) Avadailable-for-sale financial assets
Investments are designated as availablefor-
sale financial assets if they do not have fixed
maturities and fixed or determinable
payments, and management infends to hold
them for the medium fo longterm. Financial
assets that are not classified into any of the
other cafegories are also included in the
availableforsale category.

The financial assets are presented as non-
current assefs unless they mature, or
management infends to dispose of them
within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.

2.7.2 Recogpnition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assefs
are recognised on tradedate, the dafe on which
the Board commits to purchase or sell the assef.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
fo receive cash flows from the financial assefs have
expired or have been transferred and the Board
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

When securities classified as availableforsale are
sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified fo comprehensive income as gains and
losses from investment securities.

2.7.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Board measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly afiributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.

loans and receivables and held-fo-maturity financial
assefs are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Availableforsale financial assefs are subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Dividends on availableforsale equity instruments
are recognised in comprehensive income when the
Board's right to receive payments is established.

Interest on availablefor-sale financial assets, held-o-
maturity financial assets and loans and receivables
calculated using the effective inferest method is
recognised in comprehensive income.

2.8 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assefs and liabilities are offset and the nef
amount reported in the balance sheet when the Board
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an infenfion fo seftle on
a net basis or realise the asset and sefile the liability
simultaneously. The Board has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offseffing
but still allow for the related amounts fo be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
fermination of a confract.

2.9 Impairment of financial assets

The Board assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the assef [a "loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. In the case
of equity investments classified as availableforsale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered an indicator that the
assefs are impaired.

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows [excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in comprehensive
income. If a heldto-maturity financial asset has a
variable interest rafe, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective inferest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Board may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor's credit rafing), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in comprehensive income.

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

If there is objective evidence of impairment for
availableforsale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in comprehensive income — s
reclassified from funds and reserves and recognised
in comprehensive income.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that were
recognised in comprehensive income on equity
insfruments are not reversed through comprehensive
income in a subsequent period.

2.10 Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially af fair volue and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

If collection of receivables is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current asses.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the stafement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject fo an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

2.12 Funds and reserves

The income and expenses relafing fo funds and reserves,
other than investment reserve, are direcﬂ\/ dealt with in
comprehensive income. Any net surpluses or deficits
relating fo these funds and reserves are transferred
between the statement of comprehensive income and the
respective funds and reserves.
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2.13 Payables

Payables are recognised initially af fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective inferest method.

Payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one vyear or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented

as non-current liabilities.

2.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Board has a present
legal or constructive obligation where, as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required fo seftle the obligation and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligafions, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in setlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

2.15 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncerfain future events not wholly within the confrol
of the Board. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that oufflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements, if any. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
ouflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.
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2.16 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee enfitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue fo employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Emp\oyee entilements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Board operates a defined contribution
retirement scheme under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance ("ORSO Scheme”)
and o mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes
are held in separate frustee-administered funds. The
Board has no further payment obligations once the
confributions have been paid. The confributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due and, for ORSO Scheme, are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the
confributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an assef fo the extent that o cash refund or @
reduction in the future payments is available.

2.17 Revenue and other income recognition

levy income, penalty on late payments of levies and ex-
gratia fund administration charge are recognised when
the Board becomes entitled to them and it is probable
that they will be received.

Inferest income is recognised on a fime-proportion basis
using the effective inferest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right o receive
payment is established.

Rental income from property for rental is recognised in
comprehensive income on a straightline basis over the

term of the lease.

Sundry income are recognised on an accruals basis.
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2.18 Compensation

Compensation expense is accounted for on an accrual

basis.

2.19 Operating leases

()

(b)

As lessee

leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are not fransferred fo the
Board as lessee are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases [net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
comprehensive income on a siraightline basis over
the period of the lease.

As lessor

When assefs are leased out under an operating
lease, the asset is included in the balance sheet
based on the nature of the asset.

3 Financial risk and fund risk management

3.1 Fina

ncial risk factors

The Board's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks, including foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity

risk, price risk and cash flow inferest rate risk. The Board's

overall risk management progromme focuses on the

unpredictability of financiol markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Board's financial

performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial fransactions and recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the Board’s functional currency. Given that the
Board's operation in Hong Kong is conducted
mainly in Hong Kong dollar, the Board members
are of the opinion that the Board's activities are not
exposed to significant foreign exchange risk and
accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Board is primarily atfributable o
accounts receivable, heldfo-maturity financial assets
and cash at banks.
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(d)

The Board has policies in place for the control and
monitoring of its credit risk arising from uncollected
levy income. The credit risk on heldto-maturity
financial assets and liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are corporations and banks with
high credit rating assigned by intfemnational credit-
rating agencies. Accordingly, the Board members
are of the opinion that the Board's activities are not
exposed fo significant credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances. The
Board, through its Committee on Finance and
Administration, has adopted a prudent investment
and freasury sirategy so as fo ensure that it
maintains sufficient cash to meet ifs liquidity
requirements.

The table below analyses the Board's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the confractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
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flows. ERE °
2017 2016
Less than one year PR—F
Accruals and other payables (nofe 14) FEET 718 N H fih FE
FB (M5E14) 2,674,319 2,268,704
Price risk (d) E#Ek

The Board is exposed to equity securities price risk
because of the listed investments held. The
investment porffo|io is managed b\/ the Committee
on Finance and Administration of the Board and in
accordance with the Board's investment guidelines.

The Board's equity invesiments are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

At 31st December 2017, if the equity price had
increased/decreased by 5% (2016: 5%) with all
other variables held constant, availablefor-sale
financial assets and investment reserve would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$18,632,000 (2016: HK$14,672,000) as a
result of changes in fair value of the availablefor-
sale financial assets.
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(e) Cash flow interest rate risk
The Board's inferest rafe risk mainly arises from the
bank balances and is managed by the Commitiee
on Finance and Administration of the Board.

At 31st December 2017, if interest rates on bank
deposits had been 100 {2016: 100) basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
surplus for the year would have been
HK$12,794,000 (2016: HK$16,589,000)
higher/lower as a result of higher/lower inferest
income.

3.2 Fund risk management

The Board’s objective when managing funds is to
safeguard the Board's ability to continue as a going
concern and to have sufficient funding for future
operations. The Board's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The funds of the Board comprise ifs funds and reserves.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Board's financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

*  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices] or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

*  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following fable presents the Board's assets that are
measured at fair value af 31st December 2017.

(e) BERAEMEMR
HeZB@2RITHERTH
AEENERER EHERER
HESZBEB T Z2MHBLR
TRZEEE®E-

M2017412A31 8 HiR1T
BFERFE EFH,TEI00MEE
2 (20164 : 1001# & 24 ) -
BEFfEEMEHESTE.
ARFERGE SR
L ¥ 12,794,000 7T (2016
& B #16,589,0007T) ¢ It
Th B B YA R
FTEL °

32 Ev Rk EE

EsZBegnNeEREAsREER
FESZESAENTBEALE X
BEHAREZEMAZARES -
ESZBO7HBERBMETFH
A o

Ao ZB@ ETBREESR
ffé 1#8 ©

D EEMET

TEOMESZBEEEBMBEZX
BAREBEFEZERTA - TR
BHRzHRENT :

e MHRAEEXBENERTS
btz HRECRERFHE) (F—E
)

e KREF ERBENZEE
SEABEVERHE(THE
EEEBER KHEE(BIREE
BD(EZER) -

o  WIHREAIBRETSHE (R
TAERBB) 2cEEREE
BE(E=ZER -

TREHRESZEGRN2017%F12
AR ARBEAEZEE -

2017 2016

Level 1 E—BH

Availableforsale financial assets (note 8] Al H & 2 € g2 & £ (M 7£8) 372,638,430 293,441,125

MERNERBEEEEEZE8E —T—tFFRH



[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B &R 8AIN - FIE ©REINEE B EBE L)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices af the balance
sheet date. A market is regorded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market fransactions on an arm'’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assefs held by the Board is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Board makes estimates and assumptions concemning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Held-to-maturity financial assets

The Board follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on
classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
deferminable payments and fixed maturity as  held-o-
maturity. This classification requires significant judgement.
In making this judgement, the Board evaluates its intention
and ability to hold such financial assets to maturity.

If the Board fails to keep these financial assets to maturity
other than for specific circumstances explained in HKAS
39, it will be required to reclassify the whole class as
availableforsale financial assets. The financial assets
would therefore be measured at fair value instead of
amortised cost.

(b) Impairment of held-to-maturity financial
assets

The Board follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to defermine
when an investment is impaired. This deferminafion
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Board evaluates, among other factors, the duration
and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost; and the financial health of and shortterm
business outlook for the investee, including factors such as
indusiry and secfor performance, changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flow.
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B RSN - R B BN EE BE L)

Property, plant and equipment and
property for rental

5 g% CHRERREREEY

Leasehold Leasehold Property
Properties lond  improvements for rental Total
HENE
nE HELH# £EIR HENE @t
[note [a))
(P3E(a))
At 1st January 2016 B2016E1 418
Cost KA 17,052,690 6,855,332 5109410 10,600,000 39,617,432
Accumulated depreciafion ZENE (1,875,797 (43,841) (2,554,705) (3,685,224 8,159,567
Net book amount EHFE 15,176,893 6,811,491 2,554,705 6,914,776 31,457 865
Year ended 31st December #Z2016E
2016 12A31ALZ&EE
Opening net book amount FENHEFE 15,176,893 6,811,491 2,554,705 6,914,776 31,457 865
Depreciation e (341,054) (7,971) (510,941 (153,551) (1,013,517
Closing net book amount FREEFE 14,835,839 6,803,520 2,043,764 6,761,225 30,444,348
At 31st December 2016 R2016E12A31 8
Cost A 17,052,690 6,855,332 5109410 10,600,000 39,617,432
Accumuloted depreciafion ZENE (2,216,851 (51,812 (3,065,646 13,838,775 (9,173,084
Net book amount FEFE 14,835,839 6,803,520 2,043,764 6,761,225 30,444,348
Year ended 31st December #Z2017%
2017 NANALZEE
Opening nef book amount ENREFE 14,835,839 6,803,520 2,043,764 6,761,225 30,444,348
Classified as held for sale PEBBENLE
(note 12) (B#12) - - - 16,607,674 (6,607,674
~ cos - R - - — (106000001 (10,600,000
— accumulated depreciation - 2%NE - - - 3,992,326 3,992,326
Depreciation e (341,054) (7,971 (510,941 (153,551) (1,013,517
Closing net book amount FXRERFE 14,494,785 6,795,549 1,532,823 - 22823157
At 31st December 2017 R2017E12A318
Cost A 17,052,690 6,855,332 5,109,410 = 29,017 432
Accumulated depreciation ZBME [2,557,905) (59,783 (3,576,587 - 6,194,275]
Net book amount FEFE 14,494,785 6,795,549 1,532,823 - 22,823,157
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B &R 8AIN - FIE ©REINEE B EBE L)

[a)  Amounts recognised in comprehensive income for
property for renfal are as follows:

RemPiakPEIZHEDE
TEMT

2017 2016

Rental income Ha A 1,024,560 1,024,560
Direct operatfing expenses from property ~ KEE4SHSRAZWEZ

that generated rental income BEEREERAE (205,220) (193,620

819,340 830,940

As at 31st December 2017 and 2016, the Board had
no unprovided confractual obligations for future repairs
and maintenance (2016: nil).

The fair value of the property for rental as at 31st
December 2016 were HK$34,400,000. The fair values
of the property for rental are within level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy and were defermined by an external
surveyor using the markef comparison approach with
reference fo the sale prices for similar properties adjusted
by the key attributes such as property size and building
age.
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B RSN - R B BN EE BE L)

6  Financial instruments by category 6 EMIBEDE
The Board's financial instruments include the following: E4 T EeHA 2RI EBE TS
18
Held-to- Available-
maturity for-sale
Loans and financial financial
receivables assets assets Total
EXRk BEZEIHz WUHEHEZ
PEW R IE CREE CREE my
Financial assets cHEE
At 31st December 2017 R2017F12H31H
Heldto-maturity financial assets  #8 =5/ H 2

[note 7) sREEMFE7) — 884,943,227 — 884,943,227
Availablefor-sale financiol assets 7] it HE 7 £ G B E

[note 8) (B3E8) — — 372,638,430 372,638,430
Accounts receivable (note 9} JRE W R 3k (B 55 9) 12,740,908 — — 12,740,908
Inferest receivables JE U A 2, 13,647,203 — — 13,647,203
Deposits %4 64,713 — — 64,713
Fixed deposits with original REBB=A®%

maturity over three months BB EHER 1,265,414,399 — — 1,265,414,399
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBAeEEY

[note 11) (BEsE11) 14,035,438 = = 14,035,438
Total By 1,305,902,661 884,943,227 2,563,484,318
Financial assets CRMEE
At 31st December 2016 R2016F12H31H
Held-o-maturity financial assets 5B Z 5| # 2

[note 7) TREEMFE) — 349,919,024 — 349919024
Availablefor-sale financial assets A[#E H & 7 £ BB &

(note 8) (K3E8) = — 293,441,125 293,441,125
Accounts receivable (note 9) R U B 3% (B 35 9) 20,886,555 — — 20,886,555
Inferest receivables JE W R 2, 11,033,384 — — 11,033,384
Deposits e 63,313 — — 63,313
Fixed deposits with original REBB=A%

maturity over three months BHEHER 1,652,830,328 — — 1,652,830,328
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEED

[note 11) (BsE11) 6,093,015 = = 6,093,015
Total By 1,690,886,595 2,334,246,744

2017 2016
Financial liabilities cREE
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost % # 5K Azt 82 A2 G & (&
Accruals and other payables (note 14]  FEFHRIB R E b BT RIE (FIFE14) 2,674,319 2,268,704
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B &R 8AIN - FIE ©REINEE B EBE L)

The Board's exposure to various risks associoted with the H&E&EZ 8 ﬁﬁﬁ HESTAEAR 2 SHEE
financial instruments is discussed in note 3. The moximum B FA BT u£3 il c NS AREH 2 HEEEE
exposure fo credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the AR MK ELMEEZRESE -

carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.

Held-to-maturity financial assets

7 BEERIBzERMEE

2017 2016

Certificates of deposits, at nominal value 17 7 2 F 1B

885,000,000 350,000,000
(56,773) (80,976)

884,943,227 349,919,024
(100,000,000) (234,993,508

Unamortised discounts REH 29

At amortised cost 2 S5 AR AR

less: to be matured within 12 months W+ —EARE
Matured after 12 months + —{& A 1& I B8

784,943,227 114,925,516

Movements in held+to-maturity financial assets are summarised

REZIHZeREELSH AT

as follows:

2017 2016
At Tst January ®w1A1TH 349,919,024 500,916,689
Additions 18 fE 770,000,000 =
Redemption f& [ (235,000,000) (151,000,000)
Amortisation of discounts b X il 24,203 2,335
At 31st December WI12A31H 884,943,227 349,919,024

Certificates of deposits are with fixed inferest rates ranging from
1.78% to 4.85% (2016: 1.83% to 4.85%) and maturity dates
between October 2018 to March 2021 (2016: May 2017 to
March 2021).

The Board has not reclassified any financial assets measured at
amortised cost rather than fair value during the year (2016: nil).

At 31st December 2017 and 2016, the balance did not

confain impaired assefs.

Certificates of deposits with nominal value of
HK$ 100,000,000 (2016: HK$151,000,000) were matured
during the year ended 31st December 2018. There was no
disposals during the years ended 31st December 2017 and
2016.
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B RSN - R B BN EE BE L)

The fair value of heldtomaturity financial assefs based on PSS BREEBFEZRARE
quoted market bid prices is HK$879,672,130 (2016: AMzeRMEEZCLIAEBERRE

HK$350,805,400).

¥ 879,672,130 (2016 %F : B ¥
350,805,4007T) °

All' held-fo-maturity financial assefs are denominated in Hong FFERBEIH -z eMEEREBESNE
Kong dollar. MEELE o
Available-for-sale financial assets 8 AHEEZERMEE

2017 2016

Eauity securities — listed in Hong Kong

mmEst 2 FHRE

at market value: BE BB
At Tst January ®w1A1TH 203,441,125 302,511,980
Additions bt 1,035,267 849,942
Fair value gain/(loss) transferred to NABEKZE(BE)BAKRE

investment reserve (note 13) HE (MFFE13) 78,162,038 (9,920,797)
At 31st December ®12A31H 372,638,430 293,441,125
At 31st December 2017 and 2016, the balance did not R2017F K2016F 128318 #5521
confain impaired assefs. EREREEE-
All availablefor-sale financial assets are denominated in Hong FERAIHELEZERMEEMEBEIABE
Kong dollar. FC
Accounts receivable 9 EWEREX

2017 2016

levy income B A 12,774,102 20,876,934
less: provision for impairment B ORE B (33,194 (10,379
levy income receivable — nef FEW TR A — FE 12,740,908 20,866,555

MERTERMEESZEE —T—LFFH m



[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B &R 8AIN - FIE ©REINEE B EBE L)

At 31st December 2017, accounts receivable of HK$274,371
(2016: HK$98,509) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent contractors for whom there is
no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these
accounts receivable is as follows:

M2017612A318 - IR ZH B K
274,371 70 (20164 - F¥08,5097T) 2
BHEREE ZFERALEE TAHEM
AT Rk e B ARBE A/ - %
ERWIERRZER®ROTAOT

2017 2016

Past due by: CREER
Up to 3 months ZEAUR 262,692 Q7,509
4 to 12 months NE+—1EA 11,679 1,000
274,371 98,509

At 31st December 2017, accounts receivable of HK$33,194
(2016: HK$10,379) were impaired and fully provided for. The
individually impaired receivables mainly related to contractors
that were in financial difficulies and management assessed that
only a portion of receivables is expected to be recovered. The
ageing analysis of these accounts receivable is as follows:

M2017E12A318 - & U BR 3 8 &
33,1947 (20164 : # ¥10,3797T) &
BELEEHELEE - @RS RER
WREFEHARYERNE 2 AEEBE
B omEREESMGHE BHET KD
BOEWIE - ZERRER R D
N

2017 2016
Past due by: CRERRE
Up to 3 months =EAUA 33,194 10,379

Movements in the provision for impairment of accounts
receivable are as follows:

FEUWBR SR E R BE ST

2017 2016

At Tst January »1A1TH 10,379 20,449
Receivables written off during the year as £ P4R £~ A] 4R (2] # 35 A9

uncollectible Ji& U5 Tk IE - (2,575
Provision/(reversal of provision) for JEURR FUR B B, (B R )

impairment of accounts receivable (FF&E17)

(note 17) 22,815 (495)
At 31st December R12AH31H 33,194 10,379

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in administrative expenses in comprehensive
income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are
generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated

During the year, bad debt of HKS$nil [2016: HK$504) was
written off directly in administrative expenses in comprehensive

income.

The Board does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate their
fair values as at 31st December 2017 and 2016 and are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

Fixed deposits with original maturity over
three months

As at 31st December 2017, the effective interest rafe on fixed
deposits with original maturity over three months is 1.55% (2016:
1.38%) per annum; these deposits have an average maturity of

236 (2016: 238) days.

The carrying amounts of fixed deposits are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.

10

| (BZEHAIN FAESBEGUEE REM)

FAIEEABZTIT (20165 : BHS04
TEEEREZHENRERE FTTHRAX

RS ZBQUTERETRNEFNERR
o

R2017F K20165F12 /31 8 - B IR
RZEEEREEAAEBEERE A1
ANEBHEEE -

FEEBB=@BARIHA=
EH 7=

MR2017F12A318 R E # B = @
AR ERERZIERFNXR
1.55% (20164 : 1.38%) : 2SR FH
HABR /236 H (20164 : 238H) °

ERERZEmMERIIAEEHE -

Cash and cash equivalents 1N BERBEESEEY

2017 2016
Cash at banks and in hand BAERRTERS 14035438 6,093,015
Maximum exposure 1o credit risk Y2 BEEEAR 14,023812 6,092,121

The carying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

Assets classified as held for sale

ReRAESENLRES R EE
L

12 7 BEABELHEZEE

2017 2016

DE/TIELEZIE
HAEYE

Non-current assets held for sale
Property for rental

mEEE
6,607,674

In September 2017, the Board decided fo sell the property
which was originally acquired for the office use. The sale of the

property was completed in February 2018 with the sales
consideration of HK$43,280,000.

R2017F9R8 - EeZEB@REHER
EREERAERRZIVE -WELE
R2018F2A EM HEREBERER
43,280,0007T °

MERNERBEEEEEZE8E —T—tFFRH m



81£'790'065'C /56'919'Ctl = 8C/'€79'SE  194'6/971  199'685'¢/E'T BLEHTLHLI00W £10T 1oquiadaq IS € 4y

@

g ! = = = = (CESDE=L (8 siou] siesso
% BEYIZEFEREZE R0 |ooubUY 8|0s-I043|GD|IPAD UO $50| 8NJOA 110
4 (691'95] (1s0'9z2)  (2£0'269'1)  107'S€8'e BHHY Spuny WOl paLafsuDy

=X WE7ET7ZVHIEYN — Sjunowo Joy Emg_m%o UOLDIIYISSPD8) —
WM {24 1vS) [150'9/2'0) (2£0'269'e) #0892 LY KMBE - sasuade pslod —
aa = = = £15°¢10'L XM - s6iou uoyoadep —
Mm._\m CHYYZTEYSEVY # -ajosuadwon of puny pa|o|NWINIID O} JaJsuDI|
U= = 1S0'9/2'0c  ¢£0'£69'S  [2€0'6£L'07) YVESENE PuN§ pRIOINLIN00 WOJy Jojsuol|
- - - = = 752229611 HEEHHT Jooh ay 1o} snyding
= 176609 6/L'616'GE  €E8'9/£91  £16'916'81C'C HLELH107 £10¢ Asonuor §s|
W HELEHTLHIL0TH Pup 910 4oquiadaq isL € v
T

@ - - - - (x4 e 000 ses0
~— @@ @@NMW@@NWH%F 7989\5 wfow..;o*.wﬁo_wgo uo mmoi w20>;£
S - - (L12'ge0'l)  11'€g0'L Hhe jpI0as8Y W0 paLIsjsuDy

m HOWS 7RV HERE — SjunouD Joy Ewg_w%o UOLDIIYISSDD8) —
2 - - = (cos'6vel  l6lT'0v9'yl 184428491 (£18'6S7'Tl  9/9'280'7C KHHE - asuedke psloid —

z - - e’ - - - - 15810’ XHBY - s6ioyp uojopaidep —
dn@ CHWVEEEEVE  eosusdwod o) punj PSIO|NWINIID O} J8jsun) |
2 = = = = 000'$Z2°0L  000'26LVe  Tllevse (212918 YHEERE PuN§ PRIOINLINIO WOy Jojsuo)|
< 9ISl — = = = = = Try'99' 151 EERELE 1034 8y Joy snjding
2 18/'765'0¢C'C 91/'S/E'vS  G98'/Sy'l€  €£08'6S8 806'97€'0L  £5S'098'/C  6v9'0CL'/l  €8C'6€5'8/0°C BLE %9100 910¢ Asonupr 45| 4o sy
e
e

mu (JEH) (S M) (PEM) (W) (9EH) (PEM)

A4 c 8jou) (e s1ou) % 8jou) [o-®100) (9 ®iou) (0 8jou)

W By YEEY YEYE TEYLNE TELEY TEYY TEEMN TERE

T |pioL OAIRSdI OAIRSd punj puny punj punj punj

m JUBWISBAU| _U—_muu mEm—m>m UOHDH|IqRY3Y UOHUIASId 4210353y pPaipjnwnddy

< Jajndwio)

O

5
< HENTE CIL SOAI9Sal PUD SPUN4 €|

Annual Report 2017

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board



14

[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B RSN - R B BN EE BE L)

(a) Research fund (o) AREE
A research fund has been set aside to finance ongoing MEEESBUAEBETH ZEH
research projecis. RIER -

(b) Prevention fund (b) FERES
A prevention fund has been set aside fo finance education EhES B BIEABEREER
and publicity programs aiming af reminding workers and FiEHES EERBEIANKER
their families on the occupational hazard, and fo stress ABERBARRE - I8 FARIUEE
the importance of prevention. EEEcERE-

(c) Rehabilitation fund ) EEES
A rehabilitation fund has been set aside to finance EEECHUEMSBERED
rehabilitation programs which provide holistic BRAREE AERRE-
rehabilitation care to the patients.

(d) Computer systems fund (d EERASES
A computer systems fund has been set aside fo finance BEREHEAUANEDTEREANR
development for the levy system and compensation R RBEAREZ R -
system.

(e) Capital reserve (e) BEAXfEE
A capital reserve has been set aside to finance the BEAGHBOBIERBEE Y - #a
acquisition of the property, plant and equipment and LEBREES UEBFEZER
depreciation charged is compensated by a transfer from AT ER S -
this reserve each year.

() Investment reserve ) RERFE
Investment reserve represents the accumulated fair value HERBEEIHIEZ2REE
gain on availableforsale financial assets. ZREBRAABEMFZNE -

Accruals and other payables 14 FEEFRERHE e RRIE

2017 2016
Accruals JEET F A 2,286,392 1,983,590
Deposits received Bz e 170,760 170,760
Other payables H b & 5 BB 217,167 114,354
Financial liabilities HEaE 2,674,319 2,268,704
Provision for unutilised annual leave RE B EBREE 522,000 510,000

3,196,319 2,778,704

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables MR2017F K2016F 12A31H » E&F K
approximate their fair values as at 31st December 2017 and BREMEMNRBZEOSBEEER R
2016 and are denominated in Hong Kong dollar. BEMEE  BHIABETE-

MERNERBEEEEEZE8E —T—tFFRH



[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B &R 8AIN - FIE ©REINEE B EBE L)
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16

Levy income 15 BRWA
2017 2016
Private sector MATLHE 176,742,977 161,515,586
Public works sector NHETE
— Mass Transit Railway — BT 51,524,023 55,030,520
— Port and Airport Development Scheme  — 7 O} # 35 3% & 51 & 11,906,877 6,385,310
— West Kowloon Cultural District —mAEX/tE 2,499 876 1,229,882
— Others —Hfh 127,533,518 122,521,027
Quarry industry AEE 142,628 251,681
370,349,899 346,934,006

In accordance with the provision of Section 35 and schedule 5
in Part VIl of the amended Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma
(Compensation) Ordinance, the levy rate was 0.25% on the
value of (a) all construction operations exceeding
HK$ 1,000,000 undertaken in Hong Kong and the tender for
which has been submitted on or after 18th June 2000 and (b)
on dll quarrying products produced in Hong Kong with effect
from 18th June 2000. Effective from 20th August 2012, the
levy rate has been changed to 0.15% on the value of (a) all
construction operations exceeding HK$ 1,000,000 undertaken
in Hong Kong and the tender for which has been submitted on
or after 20th August 2012 and (b) on all quarrying products
produced in Hong Kong with effect from 20th August 2012.

KEFEITZ2(MERENERKEEHE
(FHE) GBI EVIEB B35 KM RS5#E
E B ER025%  HARMA T
N HE 1T M (B E B % 1,000,000 7T
ZRETR  MEZER2000%F6A18
Aok LA & IR T R (b]2000F 6 A 18
ARUNEBEEEERRZABEREER -
B2012F8H20R B BIRXFHEE
0.15% MR R()FF BEREBHETME
BB BB 1,000,000 2 &2 T8
T E 12 E 201248 208 o b 14 iE
%5 R (b)A201248 A208 RIA K&
BRRCFBEREER °

Employee benefit expense 16 BEFMRERFEX
2017 2016
Wages and salaries TENF 2 13,913,722 11,947,923
Staff medical insurance BB EERE 109,513 101,325
Staff compensation insurance BEREERE 43,284 19,415
Pension cosfs — defined contribution plan 3R K& 4 2 — 5 F 4 ZUBE 2 R K
&l 516,864 489 457
Pension costs — mandatory provident fund ER & HZ — @HIERES 312,612 256,129
Provision for unutilised annual leave R F REE 42,000 (73,545)
14,937,995 12,740,704
None of the Board members, who are considered as key WEBESTZEETFTEEBABZEE

management of the Board, received or will receive any fees or
other emoluments in respect of their services fo the Board during

the year (2016: nil).
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B RSN - R B BN EE BE L)

17 Administrative expenses 17 THHAX

2017 2016
Auditor's remuneration — audit services MBS — B%RE 165,000 165,000
Bad debts written off (note 9) AR SE (BT 3EQ) — 504

Provision/(reversal of provision) for FEUBR SRR BB (BB R E)
impairment of accounts receivable (note Q) (M7 Q) 22,815 (495)
legal and professional fees EENEXER 220,742 501,137
Printing and stationery EN R}z & 147,337 146,115
Others Hib 1,395,973 1,409,733

1,951,867 2,221,994

18 Medical examination fees 18 #IEEH
Medical examination fees represent fees paid and payable to HIEERR/RIRTERITE B & B X
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative TE () GBI E 23 R 23AF K - B 81T
Region in respect of medical examinations conducted by KBS T EBERITEER BT A B
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board under Section 23 and 23A of ERTERASCZESHKRZHEE
the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation) ==
Ordinance.

19 Income tax expense 19 Fri8 Bk X
Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Board is WEABBNNESHTIRREE FALSE
exempted by virtue of section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland SZEgRBEE BB EDI)E88KM
Revenue Ordinance. BEE -
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B &R 8AIN - FIE ©REINEE B EBE L)

20 Cash flow information

(a) Cash generated from operations

20 ReREER
() HEBEEZHELRS

2017 2016

Surplus for the year EFEAH 149,622,254 151,664,442
Adjustments for: AT & IEFE
— Depreciation [note 5) — & (HE5) 1,013,517 1,013,517
— Amortisation of discounts of —BERIBremEE

held-to-maturity financial assets (note 7) s (FYEE7) (24,203) (2,335)
— Provision/(reversal of provision) for — B ERFORERE

impairment of accounts receivable (BEEE) (o)

(note @) 22,815 (495)
— Bad debts written off (note 9) — AR (MF5E9) = 504
— Interest income — M EHA (34,311,105) (30,064,903)
— Dividend income —REWA (15,449,511) (12,631,176)
Changes in working capital: LEECEE
— Accounts receivable — FEUER 5K 8,102,832 (7,902,239
— Deposits and prepayments —®Re MFEMNKIA 13,000 15,737
— Advance payment for compensation —ENHES (22,250) (69,835)
— Accruals and other payables and — AT RIBERE MR RIE

provision for long service payments R RBRG B 447,615 (631,974)
Cash generated from operations HEBRHELRS 109,414,964 101,391,243

(b) Non-cash transactions

The principal non-cash transaction is the receipt of scrip

dividend of HK$ 1,035,267 (2016: HK$849,942).

21 Contingent liabilities

The Board is contingently liable for compensations payable on
57 (2016: 45) re-assessment applications under the
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation] Ordinance
which has not yet been determined by the Pneumoconiosis
Medical Board.
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[All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated] (Bx S B RSN - R B BN EE BE L)

22 Commitments 22 EE
(a) Capital commitments (o) BARESE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the RBEHRETNERERREA
reporting period but not recognised as liabiliies is as EMEARAZNOT :
follows:
2017 2016
Property, plant and equipment R TN 984,677 =
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) LEHERIE
At 31st December, the Board had the following future NI2A31A - EeZEef@H
aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable PHEYMEAAARBRRELEHE
operating lease in respect of ifs property for rental: RRFEEENFRBEOT -
2017 2016
No later than one year —FE RN EE 106,725 1,024,560
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Number of Confirmed New Cases in the Past Ten Years
BRETFHECHBEREF

Nuﬁrqnber of cases

LES e Total 42 €*
Tttt TT T T 743 (33)[119] T 77 -:

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Average Percentage of cases having employment record in the construction / quarry industry.
T BREREREXRIABEZIARGED L
86 90 80 82 89 86 87 85 90 91 83
= Silicosis cases w Asbestosis cases = Mesothelioma cases
B fibyes flE 2= AtRnEREzR A FHES
* Figures in parentheses | | represents number of Asbestosis cases and figures in brackets [ ] represents number of Mesothelioma cases

included in the fotal.

CAETFRARBETERIEREEZAR MIABRFARSEREAETHRBEEZ ALK -
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Analysis of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly Confirmed in 2017

—E-tLtFRNERAEZHERNERRERBEERS

31
13

7\ |
w40 - 49 Nt-Z=p sk
= 50 - 59 A+ERTNBR
60 - 69 ANTERTAR
m 70-79 t+ELTNBR

mm 80 and above N\ +EM&IAE

42

13
42
13

3

mn General work in construction site

M BB

== Unemployed/refired
KE/BRK

26

46

Table 1: Age/Average Degree of Incapacity Analysis
Bk— Fi/FHRAI(EIBES

Age group Number of Average Average DOI
cases age (%)
FiMR BAAB FHFR FHRXIEED
BERAD X
40 - 49 T = = 42 20
m+ZE 0+ sk
50 - 59 13— [1] 57 8
E+ERA+TAR
60 - 69 42 (1) [8] o4 23
NTERTARK
/0-79 13— [6] 74 18
t+EEL T AR
80 and above 3 (1) [1] 86 40
N+ BRI E
Total 72 (2) [16] 65 19
By

* Total number has included 6 fatal cases, the degree of incapacity of whom has not been
determined.

* BEBBREORAAMERATHFENREZRTHESE -

Table 2: Patients’ Employment Status at Time of First Registration

BX=- BABXRERKZAEEHR

Category of occupation Number of cases Percentage
BEER BAAE FisE2 =
General work in construction site 26 — 2] 36.1
AR 48 15

Unemployed/retired 46 (2) [14] 63.9
KRE/BRK

Total 72 (2) [16] 100.0
£

* Figures in parentheses ( ) represent number of Asbestosis cases and brackets [ ] represent numbers
of Mesothelioma cases included in the fotal.

O ABFRERABTARNEREEZIAR M IARFARAERAETHRER
EZNE -
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Table 3: Employment History of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly Confirmed in 2017
Bx= —EZ-—tFRAEBERATZHERNERRBEBREERE 2 TFC#E

Length of employment
RETERE

Industry Below 10 years 10 years or above Total
R"ETE TEUT THEHULE me
Construction Only - — 34 (1) [3] 34 (1) (3]
REEzE—1
Construction & Quarry — — — — — — — —
BEEROBEE
Construction & Quarry and others 3 (2] 23 (1) (2] 26 (1) (4]
BEE OEERAMITE
Sub-total 3 [2] 57 (2) [5] 60 (2) [7]
EE/NA
Other industries
Hi1T%
Ship manufacturing/sailoring - — 1 — [ 1 — (1]
MERE TTH
Machine repairing/Metal work — — 5 — [4] 5 — [4]
s T2
Jade/gem stone polishing — — 1 — — 1 — —
FhR/EAWNK
Others 1 [ 4 — [3] 5 — (4]
EHAh
Sub-total 1 [1] 11 - [8] 12 - [9]
EE/NA
Total 4q [3] 68 (2) [13] 72 (2) [16]
B

Notes:

— Figures in parentheses [ ) represent number of Asbestosis cases and brackets [ ] represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.

— Among the 72 cases under study, 60 (83.3%) have worked in the construction and /or the quarry industries. Only 12 (16.7%) have had employment
connection with neither.

Fia

— (|ABFRERABTARAIEREEZAE M ABFRARERAHTEAREEEZ ALK -

— HBEB72EBEPR OOABIIN)TREEXERABETE  SHI2AN67R)ERREMITETE-
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Analysis of Payments Made Under the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma
(Compensation) Ordinance as at 31 December 2017

REZ2—t&+ZA=+—RERNERREKE (@R ROIDBEH TN

Table 1: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “Old case”
Pneumoconiosis Patients

x— [BERI"BAGFESZSAHESEIN
Degree of incapacity Number Total Average
assessed in latest  of case(s) amount of compensation
assessment / monthly  payment per
re-assessment (%) payment month per
case
BHBHZERIE BAAH ERAWHHE BABAF¥Y
55 175 gEHBREEDE B BE2HAHEESH
(HKS 3% #5) (HKS 38 %)
5-20 175 936,450 5,351
25 -40 55 479,340 8,715
45 - 60 28 339,370 12,120
-5 20 175 65 -80 Q 133,880 14,876
- 05 402 55 85-100 ] 17,450 17,450
45 - 60% 28 Total 268 1,906,490 7,114
m 65 -80% Q RE
m 85 - 100% 1
In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable fo 2 cases at $5,210 per case per
month.
B2ERANEIINERBARTF -8 —t oz [#ERRBREFEAOHE] -
* "Old case” includes those patients who have received a lumpsum compensation before the
ordinance amended in 1993.
*OEERIRIFIAPENA BARMI —EBIHEZEZR-
Table 2: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “New case”
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Patients
BXRZ [FEAXRI'SAZHESZESRMESEIMN
70 248 Degree of incapacity Number Total Average
assessed in latest  of case(s) amount of compensation
assessment / monthly  payment per
re-assessment (%) payment month per
case
BHEHZEXRIE BAAH BERAWHHE BABAY¥Y
RRIBERD R B BE2HAEESH
(HKS 58 #5) (HKS 38 %)
5-20 Q78 7,970,420 8,150
778 2540 142 2,134,510 15,032
45 - 60 70 1,477,140 21,102
65 -80 24 650,040 27,085
= o 20n 778 85-100 8 282,970 35,371
= A "2 fotal 1,222 12,515,080 10,241
45 - 60% 70 e ! e !
By
m 65 -80% 24
m 85— 100% 8

In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable to 2 cases at $5,210 per case per

month.

BRRBAAEIINEREARLT Atz [#ERRBETENME] -

#

“New case” includes those patients who have not received any lump-sum compensation before.

POTERIREREN—2BIWEZEAR -
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Table 3: Summary of Compensation Paid Out Under the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)

Ordinance
BX= (MERNERREEB(HE) KRNI LBEE
Compensation item Expenses Expenses Total Expenses
incurred from incurred from incurred from
1 Jan to 1 Jan to 9 Jul 1993 to
31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2017
WEER —E—-+tF —E-XRE —hh=%F
—A—BZE —A—HZE tAhBZE
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+-—H —E—+tF
2% 2% +=ZHA=+-—H
24
(HKS 38 %) (HKS$ 38 %) (HKS 38 %)
Compensation for death resulting from
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (or both) 16,750,061 18,864,504 450,373,439
BRI & R ok B B (S a&)
SI B TRy 4 (B
Compensation for bereavement 662,340 835,593 14,501,643
FBEBETZENEE
Monthly compensation for incapacity, pain,
suffering and loss of amenities 175,360,510 162,997,645 3,054,161,526
FERTIERE N B BE HEEAAEFELER
" AmE
Compensation for incapacity prior fo date of diagnosis 2,336,569 1,733,050 45,257,727
HE B ERRIE R TIERE DM (8
Compensation for care and aftention 260,793 331,235 16,294,713
EERRBBEFEMNEE
Funeral expenses 5,355,159 4,483,925 57,414,219
IR B
Medical expenses 2,005,657 2,012,423 33,223,618
BERE
Expenses for medical appliances 1,676,364 053,405 22,093,535
BEREER
Total 204,407,453 192,211,780 3,693,320,420
P
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Profile of All Cases Receiving Compensation as at 31 December 2017
REB-tF+-AZ+-— B EEERNBEEBAZHETESR

Table 1: Profile of the ‘Old Case’ Pneumoconiosis Patients

Bx— [ERZIBAZGITESN

Age group Number of Average Average degree
cases age of incapacity (%)
Fi4 5 BAANE FIHFR FHRAIEED
BEBRSX
50 - 59 2 58 10
A+ER TN
60 - 69 55 66 26
NTEANTNE
121 /0-7/9 121 75 24
+t+EL+TNBK
80 and above 90 85 19
2099 BFERIAE 2 nmEu
= 00-09 AHEATAE 55 gyl 268 76 22
70-79 t+EET N 121 18
m 30 and above N\ t+ER&UAE Q0
Table 2: Profile of the ‘New Case’ Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma Patients
Bx= [HEXRIFBAZHETER
167 N3 43 Age group Number of Average Average degree
” cases age of incapacity (%)
‘ Fie4 5 BAANE FIFR FHRAIEED
BEERD R
20-29 ] n 27 100
T EZTNBRK
346
30-39 1 [ 36 10
591 =—t+E=1thm®
40 - 49 3 — 47 13
M+ZEr+ sk
50 - 50 113 [4] 58 16
= 20-29 —+E=+NE ' A+zF+hE
30 -39 =tzE= 1
- STESTA 60 - 69 591 [5] 65 16
40-49 BEERTAR 3 tmatam
50 -59 hAtZEhR 113
: oo ;ix;:f oy /079 346 [5] 74 17
70-79 ::\-?—ii{:\'i'ﬂ@z 346 ErEETAR
- - z= i
= 50 ond above }H—m&lx‘,u:@z 167 80 and above 167 — 85 18
. N+#ERAE
Total 1,222 [16] 69 17
By
Note :
Figures in brackets [ ] represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.
it

[(IREFAABAREBTRMBEEZ A -

MERNERBEEEEEZEE —T-—tFFRH



Five-Year Financial Summary

IEMBRE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(HK$’000)
(BT )

Income
WA
levies
B
Interest
2
Others
HipA

Total income

BUA

Expenditure

X

Compensation

e

Project expenses

B

Staff, administrative and other expenses
BE - TTHREMARAMAX
Depreciation

e

Capital expenditure

BARMX

Exchange loss

IE 3 518

Total expenditure

#x

Surplus for the year

EFERHK

Transfer from capital reserve
HEREHEBEA

Accumulated fund brought forward

LFERE

Transfer to project funds

BAGBES

Transfer from project funds o compensate
project expenses

BOEEE S B A E R

Accumulated fund carried forward

BTFEZREEES

*  Others include dividend income from listed securiies $15,449,511, Ex-gratia fund administration charge received $128,875, penalty on late payments of
levies $396,143, rental income $1,024,560, and sundry income $1.

* HEMBRARERALTESAERE5449511 T RERBES MR Z TR E M 128,875 « BB SUEGR AT Z E158396,143 7T
H2WAT,024,5607T RABRAITT
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